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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of

Chloride Metals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the attached financial statements of Chloride Metals Limited (“the

Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information

(hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,

2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2023, its loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities

for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial

Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include#egg Itial
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the Financial Statements and our Independent Auditors’ Report thereon. Our opinion on the

Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not and will not express

any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the

Other Information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial

Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recordsf

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
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auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements

al.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013, we give in the attached Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:2

a.

b.

C.

d.

e.

f.

g.

Natvmlal Vepari & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other

Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March

31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial

controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
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is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor/s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (AudIt and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us

1.

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its financial statements – Refer Note 40 to the financial statements,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were material foreseeable losses,

There are no amounts that are required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and

belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)

by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign

entities (“intermediaries") with the understanding whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person or

entity including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

c. Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above
contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year until the
date of this report, hence compliance with provisions of section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not required.
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vi. The proviso to Rule 3(1) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature

of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect from April 1,

2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
2023

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No- 106971W
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Partner

Membership No. 40441
Athal, Dated: April 28, 2023
UDIN: 23040441BGYGGK6815
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report to the Members of Chloride Metals Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

(i) a. (A) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars

including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment
and relevant details of right of use assets.

(B) The company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars

of intangible assets.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets have been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

C. We have verified the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than

properties where the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly

executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the Financial Statements included

in Property, Plant and Equipment and based on such verification we confirm that
the same are held in the name of the company.

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right

of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

d.

e. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act,1988 as amended and rules made thereunder,

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable

intervals during the year. On the basis of examination of records, we are of the

opinion that the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate and

that no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed on such verification. The discrepancies wherever noted have been

properly dealt with in the books of account of the Company.

(b The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore

rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets and

the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.-
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(iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to

companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence Clause

3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) & 3(iii)(f) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)

Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The company has not given any loans, or made any investments, or given any

guarantees and security to which section 185 or section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 applies.

(V) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts that are deemed

to be deposits pursuant to sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. As informed to us, there is no

order that has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal

or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal in respect of the said
sections.

(vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of the cost records under the sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been prescribed and we are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and

maintained. We have not, however, carried out a detailed examination of the records

to ascertain whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues

including Goods and Services Act, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance,

Income Tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate

authorities during the year. According to the information and explanations given

to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were
outstanding as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable except for liability of provident fund amounting to Rs.

0.00 Cr*. The same is not paid due to KYC issues on EPFO portal.

(* Rs. 89.400)

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been

deposited on account of any dispute except as given below:
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{!;ifRid

Amount (in
Crores}

FQrurn where
dispute is
pending

Name of
statute Nature of dues

Income Tax

ncome Tax

Service Tax

Tax on PF

disallowances
Tax

Tax, Interest and
Penalty

CIT (A)

0
0

CIT (A)
Additional

Commissioner

(Appeals-1)
Central Tax

Deputy
Commissioner

of Customs

Deputy
Commissioner

of Customs
Joint

Commissioner
of Customs

Joint
Commissioner

Appeal)

Customs Short Collection

of duty

0

Customs Short Collection

of duty

0

Customs Short Collection

of duty

0

Interest 0

Total

(viii) There are no transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or any other lender.

(c) The company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the
year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) No funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by

the company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates and

hence clause 3(ix)(e) & 3(ix)(f) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020

are not applicable to the Company.
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(x) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence clause 3(x)(a)

of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of
shares / fully / partly / optionally convertible debentures during the year under
revIew .

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been

filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and hence clause 3(xi)(b) of

the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c)

of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company. All transactions with the

related parties are in compliance with 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our
examination of the proceedings of the meetings of Board of Directors are concerned.

The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial

Statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to
the Company during the year and till the date of this report, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence clause 3(xv) of the Companies

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The nature of business and the activities of the Company are such that the Company
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is not required to obtain registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act 1934 and hence sub-clauses 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b) and 3(xvi)(c). of the Companies

(Auditors Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the company. Further as required
by clause 3(xvi)(d), we are informed that there are no acs in the group.

(xvii) On an examination of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, we are of the opinion

that the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the
immediate previous financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and

accordingly clause (3)(xviii) Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable

to the Company.

(XiX) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
representations and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any

material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is not

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they faII due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,

state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report

and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they faII due.

(XX) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on

other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule

VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of

Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

n+
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(b) There are no ongoing projects therefore clause 3(xx)(b) is not applicable to the
Company.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No- 106971W

6fk\.'#t Mumbai ++

ACeMgN Jayend
Partner

Membership No. 40441
Athal, Dated: April 28, 2023
U DIN: 23040441BGYGGK6815
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report to the Members of Chloride Metals Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
Clause Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of

Chloride Metals Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl’). These responsibilities include the

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including

adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance

with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
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included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial

Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generalIY

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance

that transa<.lions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements•

Because of the inherent limitations of Financial controls with reference to Financial

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. AIso,

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial

Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with

reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion/ the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31p 2023p based

@.
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on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
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CHLORIDE METALS LIMITED
CIR 034 300WBt')98PLC18 JOO.3

Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023

Particulars

ASSETS

(1) NOn4urrent assets

{a} I'lol)arty. Plant and tqtlifmten!
(bI C&liital \volt.ilt.I)lo8ress
(c) C)!fur Intangible Assets
td) Ftnanci iII assets

t:) Other non'current Financial Assets

le) Ot}IN non curlerit assets

(2) Current assets
(at 1llventories

(b) Filtanf'ial assets

(f) Trade recCivablCS

Iii) Caslr aInt cash uluivalar ts

liii) Othel S
{c) Othcf cuffeat assets

Total Assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Equity

{a) Equity slt3re capItal
(b) Other equitY

LIabIlities

(1) Non.current liabilitiu
{I} Fi:\dncialliabilitie5

{i) LeaR Term Bart,}wings
(Ii) Lease tlabilitics
liiil TI ade tmv4ble>

Total out£tdn limB du% of nUclo dud stttrll CItI a plibtlb

Total outstandIng dues of credItols oUter than nllcf o and

snrall alt©pdses
(iv} Other financial liablb?im

11)) Provisions

(c) I)eterrecl taxlialrilities {netJ

{2) Culrelrt lidbilit ies
(a) FInancial liabilities

(iI Short Tern) BorrowIngs

{it) I.ease IIabIlities
(II1) Tfade payables
Total outstanding dues, of ndcro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of craftor5 other than nUcIO and

small enlerprises
(iv) Other fInancial IIabIIIties

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

Total EquIty and LIabIlitIes

les form an iate8nl part of the standalone fInancial statenlents.

As per our report of even date
For Natvarlal Veparl and Co.
ICAI FIrm Registration No. : J0697 JW
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As at

March 31, 2023

(RS. In Crore)

Note
No.

3
3
3

30.1.72

132.8 S
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S

3.18

23.46

'164 . 35

248.6]6

/

8
q

la

C 7.56

6.09
6.55

SJ .28

JfK).b9

844.44

Sq.(>4

.189.79

249843

11

12

84.27

30.60
13
14

6.4?
2+GI

6.07
129.97

IS

16
17

2 7.GB

1 .SO

168.23
247.08

18
19

20

70

21

22
23

IS.80

3.99
0.76

465 04

&44.44

A. K. Choudhury
CIIief Fiaalrci31 OffIcer

As at

March 31. 2022

(Rs. In Crore)

319.4 S

6.112

O.J )

2.76
17. 74

346.53

266.16

74.97

1.54
6.56

44.52

393+73

i
i

740.28

52-sr
144.15

1 96.66

SO.62
29.75

}

E
i
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2.4 S

7.ac)

90.36

Cr 7.96
1.40

95.58
271.47

13. at

8.17
0.64

453.26

740.28

Board of Directors
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CHLORIDE METALS LIMITED

CIN U34300W81998Pt.C181003

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

I) INCOME

Revenue from operations (grOSS)
Other income

Total Income (I}

II) EXPENSES

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

( Increase } / decrease in inventories of finished goods and

work-in - progress
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation & amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses {H)

ProfIt / (Loss) before tax (I.H)

Tax expense
1. Current tax

2. Short/ (excess} pra',nsihn nf income tax

3, Deferred tax liability / {asset}

Profit / (Loss) for the year from contInuing operatIons

Other comprehensIve Income

Items that wIll not be nclassljed subsequentFy to profIt or loss

Fierneasunment of the net defined benefIt (liability) I asset
Tax effect thereon

Total other comprehensive Income, net of tax

Total comprehensIve income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Equity shares of par value Rs.10/. each

BasIc and diluted ( Rupees)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone fInancial statements.

of the Board of DIrectors

DIN

A. K. Choudhurv

As per our report of even date
For Nat%daI Veparl and Co.

ICAI FIrm Registration No. : 10697:1W
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Partner

M,No. 4044

;TIkiPlace

'M:-:W i'.1 2 -b
ChIef FInancial Officer

Note
No.

24

25

2022.23

(Rs. In Crore}

2021-22

{Rs. In Crore)

3,918.77
1.74

3,920.51

2,906.80
0.08

2,906.88

26

27

28

29

30
31

2,753.803.573.90

(63.39)24.85

36.01

12.39

11.61

137.34

2,887.76
19.12

49.68

28.49

22.82

226.35

3.926.09

(5.58)

( 1.32) 4.35

0.90

(1.32}

(4.26)

3.45

14.77

(0.09)
0.02

0.03

(0.01)

(0.07)

14.70

0+02

(4.24)

E

E

2.84to.77)

Company Secretary

cg No. airs'iA

i

{'
{

!

t+

i
;;



CHLORIDE ME rAt.S LIMITED
tIN i;:430f3V/B 1Ii $SPit. i &l cca

Slatenlfnt of Caslr Flap/s for air year ended MInh 31. 2023

2072-2]

IRs. In Crore)

Cash flow &onI operating activIties:

Pralit / IInn) lol tha year
Add : AdJustrnent$
fJPplefia tian and 8m3rt:23{ian CAnons{.

late:ect 3Rd borrowleg costs
Intel est on lease :i2iiiiitV
t!!tcres! teceived
interest acu>tInted on OR bcas

AInt scrai>Fed

Loss of asset by tire

Profit al sale of plant, property drld cquipnlerit
Exchange {gain) / loss
Suntlly balanres vlotteR back

Pravi sion fer expected credIt :css
PreViSl<HIS and other write a&cts

IOt jII adJustments

WorkIng capItal changes
(Incre&£et/decrca£e in trade Icrc;bahlPS

(Increase) / decrease in loans and other finanrirl a5 sets and other ass+ItS

{Increase) ! dec;ease in !nye!!tories
increase / {decrease } in trade rayablet

!:ItleiRe / {dec! pace) in cIInt nn3ndal llatyjiucs and other liabIlitIes and

p! uvf doris

Cash generated frOm operatIons
htccxnc lax pa'd

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash {low front InvestIng activitIes
Ptr/+edq franr tate nf pnN*erIE :dan? nod Pq! UNnPnr

Purchase of I'.ro{nrty. Fta nt and cactI>ment and (\VIP
Interest received

Net cash flows fran / (used in) InvestIng activItIes

I) Rrp

(!23. It))
C.03

(122.72 )

Cash flow from fInancing actIvIties

Dividend paid

Payment of leaSe liabilities
Expenses fOr tncreace tn authorIzed cap':taI
Proceeds from RIght issue of shares

Proceeds front long lorIn tx?rrawin85
Repayment of long tern! bono##ing I
Proceeds / (RepayrIrent) from current borrowIngs
Interest paid
Net cash lloyd from / (used in) llnandn8 actIvItIes

Net Increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
fISh and cash equIvalents at the beginning of the year

Cash end cash eqolvalen6 at the end of the year

Corr129neQB of CBsh & cash equtvplent{
Balances with bank£
Cash on hand

RRfer note aa. 13 {e} for recoKilatial of ilabHities from hnandng activities

The actampal lyIng notes &xm an intqr61 part of the standalone financial gtatat)ants

As per our report of even date

For Nat%rlal Veparl and Co.
iCal Firrn lte8i5tntion No. : 106971W.
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M.No,

A. K. Oloudhury
ChIef FInancial Officer

Place

Date

2021 - 22

IRs. In Crore)

2.2.8:

3.ai
2.12

j{}n03}

ie.os)
n.QB

G.CS

iO 03)
{6.03)
C.13

O.al
0.03

28,12

7.40

I? a;}

: 7.56

lie 26

iI.24 }

86.SO

(6. 75)

74.75

(3. III

57.00
61 , 33

(12311
(SO.45]

{4.71)
47.S2

4.55
I. Si
6.09

4.55

6.07
0.02

6.09

K Anlruddha

DIN 0009669035
NlanagigIg Director

Cornpany S,ecretul y

ALS No. 2brsg

:9 }}

Ii .63
!! !7

! , i3

it>.03i
(o.04 1
a. } 6

{0.001
Q. i C

On!
24613

35.14

1:22.2 1)

(93.90)
45.30

7. Jg

4.86

(4.891
(0.03)

{lOG

(43.40)
O.03

(43.31)

(10.50)
(1 .59}
(C.06)
1 3.00
19.60

37.88

{ 13 egO)

44.53

1.19

0.35
154
1.19

1.53
C.Cl
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CHLORIDE MFIALS LIMITED

CIN L134300WB1998PLC181003

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Manch 31, 2023

A) EquIty share capItal

AuthorIzed Share Capital

&CIS,QQ,0(D equity shares or IB. 10 each

Addition during year / period
Total Authorized capital (qOS,00.(nO equitY shares of IIs.IO each)

EquItY shares of INR IO eRb Issued, subsaibed and fully paid
Balance at the beginnIng of the reporting period

Changes in equity share capItal during the perIod
Balance at March 31,2023

aaa a 1, 202]

Changes during the year
Addition during the year

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Share Issue cxpenses OO issue of Blew sIIde es

interim dividend paid for the year 2021.22

Other Comprehensive Income foi the Veal . net of tax

Balance at March 31, 2022

Changes during the year
Addition durIng the year

Profit / (LaSS) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the perIod, net of tax
Balance at March 31, 2023

Loss of Rs. 0.07 Crore and gain of Rs. 0.02 Crore on remeasurenIent of defined employee benefit plans (net of tax) is recognized as a part of
retaIned earnings for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended March 31, 2023, respectIvely.

a) SecurIties premIum
This reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The same can be utIlized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013

b) General Reserves

General Reserve is a free reserve available to the Company

c) RetaIned earnings

This reserve represents undlstrlbuted accumulated earnings of the Company as on the balance sheet date

The accompanyIng notes form an Integral part of the standalone fiAandal statements

As per our report of even date
For Natvadal Vepari and Co.

ICAI FIrm Registration No. i 106971W
Chartered Accountants

fR':{ MumbaI tR

a&k#M. No. 40441

::: ; ; I £II() ; dZ$

A:K. Choudhury

Chief FInancial Officer

March 31, 2023

Number (Rs. In Crore)

6,as,oo,000 (;o.SO

S,25,05.952

71,25,000
5.96.30.952

Rcbel vcs dlltJ 5ull>lub

SecuritIes GerMIFM e

EarnlnBS

62.62

11.38

(0.06)

73.94

49.88

123.82

Board of DIrectors

\X!
K AnlNddha

DIN 0009669035

Managing Director

March 311 2022

Number (Rs. In Crore)

5.25,CD,000
80.00,000

52.50

8.00

6.05,00,000

5,08,80.952

16.25.000

S,25,05,952

50.88

1.63

52.51

52.51

7.13

59.64

t

i
t

128.6416.10 49.92

11.38

14.76

(0.06)

(10.50)
(0.07)

144.15

14.76

(10.50)

(0.07)

54.1116.10

49.88

(4.26)
0.02

189.79

(4.26)

0.02

4968716.10

Comparly Secretary
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CHLORIDE MrrALS LIMITED

CIN: U34300WB1998PLC181003

Statement of SignIficant AccountIng policies and Other Explanatory Notes for financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

1. Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated on December 14, 1998 formerly known as Tandon Metals Limited. Chloride Metals
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Exide Industries Limited with effect from November 01, 2007. Pursuant to the
approval of the scheme of amalgamation of Chloride Alloys India Limited, another wholly owned subsidiary, with effect
from April 01, 2015, the operations of the said Chloride Alloys India Limited have been merged with those of the
Company. Both plants have an integrated and stateof the art smelting facility which is engaged in the process of

extracting lead and lead alloys by re-melting impure lead and recycling lead scrap batteries and worn-out lead content
products. During the year 2021-22, the Company has started commercial production at Haldia plant. The Company is
setting up a greenfield plant at Supa. The entire plant is expected to be commissioned in the financial year ending
March 31, 2024.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on April 28, 2023.

These financial statements can be amended by the board of directors till they are placed before the share holders and
also by the share holders before their approval for adoption.

2. Basis of Preparation, Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and significant Accounting Policies:

2.1. Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2014 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are prepared in accordance with Ind AS .

The financial statements are presented in INFI and all values are rounded to the nearest Crores (INR 00,00,000), except
otherwise stated.

2.2. SignIficant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptIons

The preparation of the fBnancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,

judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes
in estimates are made as management becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statement in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in

Estimates



estimates are reflected in the financial statement in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

Judgements

The Company's management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the separate financial statements, while formulating the Company’s accounting policies

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment . Tbe company reviews the useful life of property, plant and

equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in
future periods

b) ImpaIrment of property, plant and equipment - For propertY, plant and equipment and intangibles an assessment
is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable or previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised.

c) InventorIes -The Company estimates the net realisable value (NRV) of its inventories by taking into account
estimated selling price, estimated cost of completion, estimated costs necessary to make the sale, obsolescence
considering the past trend. Inventories are written down to NRV where such NRV is lower than their cost,

d) RecognItion and measurement of other ProvIsions - The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based

on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known
at the dosing date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the amount included
in other provisions.

2.3. Recent pronounoements

Ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued and amended from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA

amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable fTom April 1, 2023, as below

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant

accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can

reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The

Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

b) Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and

decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs

15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the
impact, if any, in its financial statements.

C) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting EstImates and Errors

TIle amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The

definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, accounting estimates are " monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty” Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial

bbai t



statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this

amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

2.4. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Current and non<urrent classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities,

An asset is treated as current when

It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

I IIe It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

nIe Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating CYcle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

111 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

b) PropertY, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of tax/duty credit awtIed, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price inclusive of taxes, commissioning
expenses, etc. up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. When significant parts of property, plant and

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes

the new part with its own associated useful life and tt is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred

• Capital Work in Progress represents expenditure incurred on capital assets that are under construction or are
pending capitalisation and includes Project expenses pending allocation. Project expenses pending allocation are
apportioned to the property, plant and equipment of the project proportionately on capitalisation

• Borrowing costs on Property, Plant and Equipment’s are capitalised when the relevant recognition criteria
specified in Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs is met. Borrowing costs related to the CWIP are carried in CWIP to be
apportioned.



•

•

Decommissioning costs, if any, on Property, Plant and Equipment are estimated at their present value and

capitalised as part of such assets

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

• Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate

asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred

• The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Property, plant and equipment existing on the date of transition on application of Ind AS are accounted on
deemed cost basis by applying para D7AA in accordance with the exemption provided in Ind AS IOI First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards at previous GAAP carrying value.

• In respect of land under lease , the committed lease liabilities are accounted at the net present value and added
to the carrying value of the Land under lease on initial recognition and the liability included as lease liabilities of
land

C) Intangible assets

•

•

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,

Internally generated intangible$ excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

• Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each

reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and

are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset

• Intangible Assets without finite life are tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date and Impairment
provision, if any are debited to profit and loss.

• Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised

d) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to expense the cost less residual value over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of Vehicles where the useful

life is considered lower than what is mentioned in Schedule II at 6 years against 8 years mentioned in Scehdule ll.

Amortisation of Intangible assets are done on the basis of the period over which the economic benefits are
expected to be realised. The following are the estimates of the period over which the economic benefits are

expected
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e) Borrowing costs

• Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also

includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs includes the discounts on factoring and bill discounting arrangements

f) Impairment of Non.financial Assets:

On annual basis the Company makes an assessment of any indicator that may lead to impairment of assets. An

asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. Recoverable amount is

higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell

e

•

An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as

impaired.

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate
of recoverable amount,

• The recoverable amount is the higher between an asset’s fair value less sale costs and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped together at the lowest level for which there is separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

8} Inventories

Items of inventories are valued lower of cost and estimated net realisable value as given below

• Raw materials, Components, Stores and Spares: Raw materials, Components, Stores and Spares: cost includes
cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on moving weighted average

However, material and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost if
the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost

• Finished Goods & Work in Progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of direct
material is determined on weighted average

• Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

h) Cash and cash equivalents

• Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, which are short-term, highly
liquid investments, that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value,

i) Foreign CurrencY Translation:

• Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in reporting currency by the Company at spot rates at the
date of transaction. TIle Company's functional currency and reporting currency is same i.e. INR.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.



• Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. The company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign
CurrencY Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of
deterrnining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an

entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

i)

• Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

• Provisions: The Company recognizes a provision when: it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Long term provisions are fair valued to the
net present value and the same are increased each year by providing for the finance portion at the EtR of the
respective company.

• Contingent liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past

events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where
a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

• Contingent Assets: A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in
the financial statements. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

k) Onerous contracts

• A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower expected costs of terminating the
contract and the expected cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recognizes impairment on the assets with the contract.

1) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a

liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

• A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

• All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities



• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

• For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by rtassessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

• For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis

of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above

m) Financial instruments

i. Financial assets

• Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets
measured at amortized cost.

• Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

- Financial assets at fair value

- Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit
and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through
other comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for
impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through proflt or loss under the fair value option

Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value
changes),

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option

Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistencY (sometimes referred to as an 'accounting
mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on
them on different bases,

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss

fn



All equity investments other than investment on subsidiary , joint venture and associates are measured at fair
value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognized in the staternent of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial Instruments

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or Tbe Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement and either the Company has transferred substantially all

the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. The factoring arrangement being under taken by
the Company in respect of factoring its trade receivables with no re-course to the Company in case of default
results in derecognition of the financial asset and the related factoring cost is disclosed in finance cost.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of

the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

• Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the Financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to

- the 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

- full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
life of the financial instrument).

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables or
contract revenue receivables; and All lease receivables

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes

impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company

reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.



ii. Financial liabilities

• Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payable$ net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at fair value through profSt or loss

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near

term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as def\ned by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

• Loans and borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR

amortization process,

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIRamortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss

•

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Financial guarantee contracts

• Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires,

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. OfFsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

iv. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting



Initial recognition and subsequent measurement - The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as

forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks,

interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative. The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss

n) Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of lead and lead alloys.

At contract inception, Company assess the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and identify as a
performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that performance
obligation and that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in

exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer net of returns, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties (for example, taxes) and excluding discounts and incentives, as specified in the contract with
customer

With respect to sale of products and rendering of certain services revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
performance obligation is satisfied and the customer obtains the control of goods or services. There is no significant
financing components involved on contract with customers. Invoices are usually payable within the credit period as

agreed with respective customers. Revenue from certain services are generated over a period of time, during which
services are rendered based on contractual milestones. Revenue recognition takes place when a milestone is
comoleted

The Company recognises revenue only when it is probable that it will collect the consideration to which it will be

entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer.

Other Operating Income / Other Income :

i. Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent are met and there is no
significant uncertainty about the collectability. In respect of incentives attributable to the export of goods, the
Company following the accounting principle of matching revenue with the cost has recognised export
incentive receivable when all conditions precedent to the eligibility of benefits have been satisfied and when it
is reasonably certain of deriving the benefit. Since these schemes are meant for neutralisation of duties and

taxes on inputs pursuant to exports, the same are grouped under material costs.

Ii. Revenue in respect of Insurance /other claims, commission etc. are recognised only when it is reasonably
certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

iii. Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.

iv. For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (HR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a

financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call

and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss

0) Employee benefits

m)
g

at a



All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the
expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service,

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. TIle company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,

Gratuity, a defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each

year/period on projected Unit Credit Method.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, which recognizes each period of service as

giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the fSnaI

obligation.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net

interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified
to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognized in the statement of profit and

loss in the period of plan amendment.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee benefit expenses

in the statement of profIt and loss

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements Net interest expense or income and Long-term employee benefits

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The current and non-current bifurcation is done as per Actuarial report.

Compensated absences : which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date.

Termination benefits : Termination benefits are payable as a result of the company’s decision to terminate
employment before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange

for these benefits. The company recognizes these benefits when it has demonstrably undertaken to terminate current
employees’ employment in accordance with a formal detailed plan that cannot be withdrawn, or to provide severance

indemnities as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits that will not be paid within 12

months of the balance sheet date are discounted to their present value. Termination benefits are recognized as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred,

P) Taxes

Tax expenses comprise Current Tax and Deferred Tax.:

Current Tax:

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of
assessments/ appeals.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement
of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Tbe current income tax charge is calculated on the



basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting and are recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or liabilitY settled, based on the tax rates (tax laws) that have been enacted or sub£tantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the
statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority,

The break-up of major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date has been arrived
at after setting off deferred tax assets and liabilities where the Company have a legally enforceable right to set-off
assets against liabilities and where such assets and liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same
governing taxation laws.

Deferred Tax Asset on unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses are created only when there is a reasonable
certainty of generating profits in the future period during which the loss is permitted to be set off.

For items recognised in OCI or equity, deferred / current tax is also recognised in OCI or equity.

q)

As a lessee

Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of land under lease and plant and equipment necessary for the
purposes of its manufacturing operations. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease

payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised

The rightof-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,



Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverabiltty whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease

payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

Applied incremental borrowing rate to arrive at present value of lease payments.

• Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months
of lease term on the date of initial application

• Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application,

• Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly
IndASl16 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 9%,

r) Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net prof\t or loss before OCI for the year by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

S) Dividend DistrIbution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as a liabiltty in the Company's annual accounts in
the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holder.

t) Trade Payables & Trade Recetvables.

A payable is classified as a 'trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or
services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually
settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method

A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services
rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at transaction values and

subsequently measured at amortised cost usIng the EIR method (if there is a financIng element), less provision for
expected or lifetime credit loss.

U) Cost of Issue of fresh Equity

Expenses in connection with issue of fresh capital is charged to Equity in accordance with Ind AS 32 read with Ind AS 1.
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CHLORIDE MrrALS LIMITED

CIN U34300WB1998PLC181003

Notes to fInancIal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in IndIan Rupees in Crores unless otherwIse stated)

PartIculars

4 Other non-current FInancIal Assets (at amortized cost)

SecurIty deposits

• Unsecured, considered good

Other non.current assets
(1) Unsecured, oonsldered good

a) Prepaid expenses

b) PrepaId taxes (net of provIsIons)

c) Deposit agaInst appeal

d) CapItal advances

5 As at
March 31, 2023

0.10
12.09

As at
March 31. 2023

6 Inventories

( At lower of cost and net realizable value )
a) Raw materials

- in hand
- in transIt

Work-In-pI-oBI-ess

Finished goods
- in hand

ChemIcals & flIJxe$

Stores and spares and fuels

b)
C)

d)

e)

The disclosure of Inventories recognIzed as an expewe in acoordance wIth paragraph 36 of Ind AS 2 is as follows:
As at

PartIculars , March 31, 2023

(1) Amount of inventories recognized as an expense during the perIod Including Stores and Spares and 3f777.36

Chemical and Fluxes

(I1) Amount of write - back of inventories recognized as reduction in consumption during the period

{in) Amount of write - down of Inventories recognIzed as an expense during the period.

As at
March 31, 2023

67.44

0.16

7 Trade recelvables (unsecured, at amarthed cast)

Trade receIvable - Considered good
Trade receIvable - SignifIcant increase in credIt risk

Less : Provision for expected credit loss

{a) Trade ReceIvable ARelnR Schedu19

(AgeIng from due date of paYment)

As at March 31, 2023

S18nlncant
in credIt rIsk

Range of O/s perIod

61.55

5.79
0.09
0.01

Not Due

less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year

1-2 year
2-3 year
>3 irs

Total

As at
March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2023

3.18 2.76

3.18 2.76

As at

March 31, 2022
0.17

5.34
0.07

12.16
17.74

11.27
23.46

!

E
As at

March 31, 2022

103.95

13.69

85.17

117.33

6.70
81.35

i55.67

1.36

6.32

266816

34.64

2.39
6.20

248.61

As at
March 31. 2022

2,795.53

0.69

2,796.22

0.38

3,777.75

As at
March 31, 2022

74.97

74.97

74.97

67.60

0.04

67.56

61.55

5.79
0.09
0.01



As at March 3

Good SIgnIficant increase credIt ImpaIred
In credit riskRange of O/s perIod

Unbilled

Not Due

less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year
1.2 year
2-3 year
>3

As at March 3& 2022
U

ConsIdered Good Significant increase credit impaired
In credit riskRange of O/s perIod

Not Due

less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 year
2'3 year
>3
Total

65.76

8.62
0.22

0.20

65.76

8.62
0.22

0.20

As at March 31, 2022
}

Range of O/s perIod
Gonsldered Good Slgntflc8nt Increase credIt Impglred

in credit risk

bmI id
Not DIre

less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year

1'2 year
2.3 year
> 3 years

Mon

}.
(b) SInce the primary customer is the holdIng company the credIt rlsk is remote consIdering the net worth and fInancIal positIon of the HoldIng

Company. Further, in the absence of any bad debts from the holdIng company in the past the expected credit loss is zero and the Company is

not makIng any provIsIons on account any expected credit loss even under the simplified method in respect of trade receivables of the
HoldIng Company. All overdue customer balances are evaluated takIng Into account the age of the dues, specIfIc credIt cIrcumstances, the
track reoord of the counterparty etc. Loss allowances and Impairment is recognIzed, where consIdered approprIate by the management.

(c) Expected credit loss
The Company estirnates ImpaIrment under the simplified approach. AccordIngly, it does not track the changes in credit rIsk of trade
recelvables. The ImpaIrment amount represents expected credit loss. In vIew there of, the additional dIsclosures for changes in credit risk

and credIt Impaired are not disclosed.

i f:

(d) [RoMment in the expected credIt March 31, 2023 1 March 31, 2022

As at As at

Balance at the beginnIng of the perIod
Reversal durIng the year
AddItIon durIng the year
ProvIsIon at the end of the

8 Cash and cash equIvalents
a) Balances with banks

b) Cash on hand

As at

March 31, 2023
6.07

0.02
6.09

As at
March 31, 2022

1.53
0.01
1854

@..



Other current fInancIal assets

(i) Unsecured, corsidered good
a) Discount receivable

b) Security Deposit

c) Insurance receIvable

Other current assets

[1) Unsecured, considered good
a) Prepaid expenses

b) Balances wIth tax authorItIes
c) Advance to suppliers
d) Loans and advance to staff
e) Unbilled revenue - Contract assets

f) Export benefIt entitlement receIvable
8) Indirect taxes recoverable
h) Other recei%bles

10

11 Share CapItal
a) Authorized

6,05,00,tX)0 (P.Y. 6,05,oo,Qaa) equIty shares of Rs. 10 each

b) Issued, subscribed &fully paId-up

5,96,30,952 (P.Y. 5,25,05,952) equitY shares of Rs. 10 each

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Exlde Industries LImIted, a company IIsted on the stock exchanges at BSE, NSE and CSE.C)

d) Details of shareholding in excess of 5%

PartIculars

Exide lhdustrtes Limited - HoldIng Company

% of HoldIng

As per the records of the Company, IncludIng Its register of shareholders/members receIved from shareholders, the above shareholding

represents legal ownershlps of the shares.

ReconcIIIatIon of the equity shares outstandIng at the begInnIng and at the end of the perIod
Particulars B at March 31, 2023

Number (Rs. In Crore)

At the beginning of the year 5,25,05,952 52.51

Issued durIng the period 71,25,CX>0 7.13

Outstanding at the end of the year . , . S,96,30,952 59.64

e)

Shares held by promoters

(a) Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023

f)

Shares held by Promotors
As at March 31, 2023Promoter Name

No. of Shares% of total SharesNo. of Shares

Exide Industries LImited - Holding

Company

100.00%5,96,30,952

ICXieC>0%5,96,30,952Total

(b) Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022
r

As at March 31. 2021
No. of Shares

S,08,80,952

As at March 31. 2022

No. of Shares % of total Shares

5,25,05,952 100.00%

Promoter Name

Exide IndustrIes Limited - HoldIng

Company

Total 100.00%5.25,05,952

As at
March 31, 2023

5.76

0.09
0.70
6.55

As at
March 31. 2023

As at
March 31, 2023

60.50

AS at

March 31. 2023

Number of shares

1\eId

5,96,30,952
100%

As at March 31, 2022

% of total Shares

5,25,05,952

S,25,05,952

% o

5,08,80,952

As at
March 31, 2022

4.63
0.04
1.89
6.56

As at
March 31. 2022

1.03
36.62

1.43

0.05

1.53

0.89
39.04

3.51

0.06

3.32
1.37

3.04

0.05

51.28

3.86

44.52

As at
March 31, 2022

60.50
i

59.64 52.51
i
F
i

i
i
E

i
t
i
}

i

i

i

As at

March 31, 2022
Number of shares

held
5,25,05.952

100%

As at March 31. 2022

Number (Rs. In Crore}
5.08,80.952 50.88

16.25.000 1.63

5,25,05,952 52.51

% of change

durIng the PerIod

13.57%100.00%

13.57%100.0096

% of change
durIng the year

3.19%100.00%

iFH

gi:;•H

}

3.19%100.00%

lbai
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g) The CompanY has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares havIng a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equIty shares is

entitled to one vote per share. In the event of IIquidatIon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaInIng
assets of the company, after payment of all external IIabIlitIes. The dIstrIbutIon wIll be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

12 Other equIty As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

123.82 73.94a) SecurItIes premIum

b) General reserve 16.10

49.87

189.79

16.10

54.11

144.15

c) RetaIned earnings

13

Non<urrent liabilities
Long Term BorrowIngs

Secured

Term loan - 1 - Axis Bank

Term loan - 2 - HDFC Bank

Less : Current maturtties

As at

March 31, 2023
36.96

74.99

27.68
84.27

As at
March 31, 2022

49.47
13.66

12.51

50.62
l

!

}

i

a)
i.
11.

111.

84.27 50.62

Term ban . I

The above town loan is secured by :
Exclusive charge [securIty interest) on the entire assets, movable (excluding current assets) of Haldia Unit
ExclusIve charge (security Interest) on the entIre assets, Immovables of Haldla UnIt
ExclusIve mortgage of all that pIece and parcel of leasehold land measurIng an area of approximately 21.15 Acre lyIng and situated at under
Mouza- Basudevpur & kashbere,

ib) Reppvment pnd 1r.ten$t ratq :
The loan is repayable in 12 quarterly installments after moratorium period of 2 years from the date of first disbursement. The amount of
repayment is determIned as a percentage of orIgInal loan amount rangIng from 8.32% to 8.34% of the loan in respect of each Instalment. The
Interest rate is to be reset at 12 months Intervals. Interest rate is calculated at 12 month MCLR (presently at 6% p.a. PY - 7.75% p.a.} payable
at monthly intervals

The repayment schedule would be as under. Repayment to start from beginning of quarter i.e. last day of the moratorium perIod.

Quarter . Year

May 25 ' Ct12

February 25 - all
November 24 - aiD

August 24 Q9

May 24 ' Q8
February 24 - Q7

November 23 - Q6

August 23- as
May 23 ' Q4
Total

Quarterly Installment
3.63
4.16
4.16
4.16
4.17
4.17
4.17
4.17
4.17

36.96

a)

Terrn Loan . 2
The above term loan is secured by :
ExclusIve charge by way of hypothecation on all the Plant & MachInery both present and future consIstIng of all movable fIxed assets, beIng

movable properties, now stored at or being stored or whIch may hereafter be brought into or stored at or at present Installed at Supa Plant.
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the whole of the Security provider’s movable assets includIng its movable plant & machinery,
machInery spares, tools and accessories and other movables situated at Supa Plant.

b) Repayment and Int+rest rate :
TIle loan is repayable in 6 years after moratorium perIod of 1 years from the date of first disbursement. After moratorium, 2nd year
repayment wIll be 11 Crores to be paId in 4 quarterly installments. Subsequent repayments of balance amount is to be made in 16 equal
quarterly installments. The Interest rate is linked to prevaiIIng 3 month T BIll + Fixed Spread determIned on loan dlsbursal date. Reset of

interest wIll happen 3 months @ prevailing 3 month T bill + fixed spread determined on loan disbursal date.

;

}



The repayrnent schedule would be as under

C)

d) RegIstratIon of charges or satIsfactIon wIth RegIstrar of CompanIes

e)

Balance as an AprII 1, 2021

Interest accrued

AddItIon durIng the year
Changes from financIng cash flows

Non cash changes
Other chan

ClosIng balance as on March 12:bza

lmam4&IaiiiM
Addltton during the year
Changes from fInancing cash flows
Non cash changes

14 Lease IIabIIIty
Lease IIabIlity of land - Non current

Lease IIabIIIty of ROU - Non current

Quarter . Year
Feb 28 . C120

Nov 27 - alg
Aug 27 - CZ18

May 27 - Cl17

Feb 27 - Q16

Nov 26 - C115

Aug 26 . C114

May 26 - Q:13

Feb 26 - Cl12

Nov 25 - C111

Aug 25 - Q10

May 25 - Q9
Feb 25 . C18

Nov 24 - Q7

Aug 24 - Q6

May 24 ' CD
Feb 24 - Q4

Nov 23 . Q3

Aug 23 - Q2

May 23 - Ql
Total

PartIculars

Repayment withIn one year from the end of the fInancIal year
Repayrnent beyond one year to fIve years from the end of the fInancIal year
Repayment beyond five years from the end of thn financial Year

UtIIIzatIon of Borrowings taken from Bank and Financial InstItutIon
DurIng the year, the company has obtaIned the fresh dlsbursement agaInst the term loan whIch have been used for the specIfIc purpose for
which it was taken

RegIstratIon of Charge

As at March 31, 2023, the Company has regIstered all charges duly with the Registrar of Companies in favor of the lenders

SatIsfaction of Charge

There are charges dIsclosed as outstandIng of Rs. 18.58 Crores as at March 31, 2023 (PY Rs. 18.58 CroFes as at March 31, 2022) in respect of

borrowIngs whIch have been repaid long back. The Company is unable to clear the satisfaction for lack of requIsIte documentatIon frorn the
lenders. The matter is being followed up by the Company.

ReconcIIIatIon of ca$h fIIPW+ fIXpm qpln SInn pctivi IIU N per Ind A5 7 : -

>

Quarterly Installment
3.99
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00

4.00
2.75
2.75
2.75

2.75
74.99

I
t:

i
i

As at
March 31, 2022

12.51
47.23

3.39
63813

As at
March 31, 2023

27.68

84.26

111l95

Short termLong termL£ase IIabIIIty Interest

12.575.62
1.13

25.99
37.8819.60(13.80)(1.59)
12.51(12.51)0.07

2.12

1.97
42.96(4.71)(3.14)
27.68.27.68

}

F

}

i

As at
March 31, 2022

4.12
25.63

As at
March 31, 2023

6.25
24.35

30e60 29875



As at
March 31, 2023

6.42
15 Other non current financial liabilities

CapItal creditors

As at As at
March 31. 2023 March 31. 202216 ProvisIons (Non Current)

a) ProvIsIon for employee benefits
Gratuity
Leave BenefIts

As at
March 31, 202317 Deferred tax IIabIIItIes(net)

a) Deferred tax IIabIlity:

Arising out of temporary difference in depreciable assets

b) Deferred tax assets:

Lease liabilities
Tax disallowances

Expected credIt loss
Unabsorbed losses

Net deferred tax IIabIlity

TIle Cornpally has created deferred tax asset on unabsorbed tax losses on the basIs of Its proJectIons of future taxable profIts ari lilIIE out of Its
new projects and expansIon plans which are in the last leg of capitalization. TIle total deferred tax asset recognIzed on unabsorbed losses

durIng the year is Rs. 2.43 Cr.

Current llabllttie£

Short Term BorrowIngs
Secured

WaDI I nan from banks+

Secured by first pad passu charge on entIre stocks and book debts of the Company (both present
and future)
Current maturities of long term borrowings

he at
March 31, 202318

+The bank reserves the rIght to alter the interest rate or spread or the interest reset date upon occurrence of conditIons mentioned in the
sanction letter.

BorrowIngs frorn banks or fInancIal InstItutions on the basIs of securItY of current assets

The Company had borrowIngs during the year from banks on the basis of security of current assets, the dIsclosure w.r.t documents submItted
to lenders is tabulated in Statement I

As at As 8t
, 2023 March 31, 2022

0.21 0.18
1.29 1.22

19 Lease IIabIIIty
Lease IIabIlity of land - Current
Lease liabiIIty of ROU - Current

As at
March 31, 202320 Current trade payables

a) Trade payables

Total outstandIng dues of mIcro and small enterprIses
Total outstanding dues of credItors other than micro and small enterprises

6a}'
'S {\mIFIi +

+

As at
March 31, 2022

0.14

0.146.42

1.83

0.62
2.4S

1.97

0.64

2.61

As at

March 31, 2022

9.69 8.32

(0.26)

(0.661

M

7e40

(0.45)
(0.73)

(0.01)

(2,43)
6.07

[

Ag at

March 31, 2022

sr).45 i
t
i

i

i
i
I

12.5127.68

62.9627.68

As at
March 31, 2022

95.58

271.47

367.05

168.23

247.08
415831



DetaIls of dues to mIcro and small enterprIses as defIned under MSMED Act, 2006

PrIncIpal amount due
Interest due on above

the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accountIng
year

Amount of Interest paid in terms of Sec 16 of the MIcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act. 2006

Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay
Amount of interest accrued and remaInIng unpaId as at year end
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeedIng year

The CompanY has compiled the above information based on written confirmations from suppIIers and have been determined to the extent
such parties have been IdentIfIed on the basis of the InformatIon avaIlable wIth the company. ThIs has been reIIed upon by the audItors.

Trade Payable AgeIng Schedule

(a) As at March 31, 2023
MSME

UndIsputed Disputed
Range of O/s peNod

DitIme
Not Due

Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 year
> 3 years

168.23

Total 168.23

Ih) A6 at March 81+ 2022
MSME

Uedlsputqd . DIsputed

95.58

RanBe elO/s period

aITiiT8iF
Not Due

Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 year
> 3 years

Total 95.58

21 Other financial IIabIIItIes

SecurIty deposits received
CapItal CredItors

Employee dues
Interest accrued

22 Other current IIabIlities

Advance from customers - Contract liabIIIty
DutIes, taxes and other statutory dues payable
Export benefit entitlement payable

ProvIsIons (Current)

ProvIsIon for employee benefIts
Gratuity
Leave BenefIts

Others

Provision for tax (net of prepaId)
ProvIsIon for sales return

23

AddItIons durIng
Reversed during 1 ClosIng BalanceOpenIng Balance the perIod

As at
March 31, 2023

168.23

Others

UndIsputed
16.41

208.20
22.38
0.02
0.07

247.08

Others

Undisputed
m3

241.75
6.41
0.00
0.00
0.00

271.47

As at
March 31, 2023

1.91
10.78

2.53

0.58

15.80

As at
March 31, 2023

0.20
1.32
2.47

3.99

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

95.58

9.31

0.08
0.080.08

Disputed

Ms

i-

i

As at
March 31. 2022

me
10.30

1.81

0.13

13.04

As at
March 31, 2022

0.28

7.89

8.17

As at
March 31, 2022

0.14

0.05

0.07
0.03

0.49
0.08

Of76

0.49
0.05

0.64

ProvIsIon for sale;;ii;in



2022-23 2021-22

25

26 Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the begInnIng of the perIod
Add : Purchases

27 ( Increase ) / decrease in inventorIes of fInIshed goods and work-in - progress
WIP Inventory at the beginning of the period

WIP Inventory at the end of the period

24 Revenue fmrnoperatlons

Revenue from operatIons
Sale of products

Sale of services

Other operatIng revenue
Sale of scrap

Export Incentive

DIsclosure in accordance wIth Ind AS - 115 "Revenue RecognItIon DIsclosures", of the CompanIes ( IndIan AccountIng Standards) Rules, 2015

Revenue dlsagBreBatlon based on :

(a) Category of good and servIces
Lead Alloy
Job work and Product Services

(b) GeographIcal nB}on
India
International

b. Major customers - Approximately 96.97% (P.Y. 97.46%) of total revenue of the Company is to the HoldIng Company.

For sale of products and rendering of certain services, Company has recognized revenue based on point of time and its receivables are rights to consideration that are
uncondItIonal.

d. Changes in Contract Assets are as follows :

Balance at the beginning ot the year
Invoices raIsed during the Year

Revenue recognized during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Changes in COntract IIabIlities are as follows :

Balance at the begInnIng of the year

Revenue recognized during the year
Fresh receIpts durIng the year for unsatIsfied performance obIIgatIon
Balance at the end of the year

f, The entire unsatisfied performance obligation will be fulfIlled in the succeedIng year

Other Income
Interest Income
Interest accounted on EIR basis

Other Income . Profit on Sale of Assets

ForeIgn exchange gain (net of loss)
Insurance claIm receIved

Sundry balances written back

Less : Inventory at the end of the perIod

FG Inventory at the beginnIng of the period
FG Inventory at the end of the period

The Inventory cost of finIshed goods & WIP during the period includes write down of Rs. 0.35 Cr Crores [Previous period Rs. 0.48 Cr) & Rs. 0.03 Cr {PY Rs. 0.20 Cr)

respectively.

3,822.01
75.06

21.43

0.27

3,918.77

2022-23

3,822.01

75.06

3,897.07

3,874.74
22.33

3,897.07

2022.23

r.s3

(1.53)
3.32

3.32

2022.23
0.28

(0.28)
0.20
0.20

2022.23
0.03
0.05
0.03

1.44
0.06
0.13
1.74

2022-23

117.64
3.580.28

3,697.93

124.03

3,573.90

2022-23

85.17

(81.35)

55.67

(34.64)

W4

2,851.89
37.31

17.47
0.13

2,906.80

2021.22

2,851.89

37.31

2,889.20

2,878.72
10.48

2,889.20

2021.22

1.53
1.53

B

i
2021.22

0.02

(0.02)
0.28
0.28

2021.22
0.03
0.04

0.01

0.08

2021-22

90.97

2.780.47

2.871.44
117.64

2,753.80

2021.22

46.15

(85.17)

31.30

(55.67)

m6
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28 Employee benefIts expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

ContributIon to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Fin8nce costs

Interest on debts and borrowIngs

Interest on factoring on trade receIvable
Interest on MSME

Interest on dIrect taxes

Interest on indirect taxes

Interest on lease liabIIIty

29

30 DeprecIatIon and amonlzatlon expense

DeprecIation

Amortization of intangIble asset

Depreciation on Ral J Assets

Other expenses

Consumption of Stores and Spares

Consumption of ChemIcal and Fluxes

ConsumptIon of Power and fuel
Hire charges
Watch & ward expenses

Waste management expenses
Remuneration to AudItors

- Audit fees Included IImited revIew

• Tax alldit inrllldine transfer pncln8
- Out of pocket expenses

Bdllk bltdl Bus

ForeIgn exchange loss (net of BaIn)

Provision for expected aedit loss
Assets Scrapped

Loss of asset by fire
Freight outward
RepaIrs and maIntenance

- MachInery

- Building
. Others

Rent

Rates and taxes

DIrector's SItting fee
CSR Expenses
Insurance
CommunIcation

Travel and conveyance

Printing and statIonery
ProfessIonal and consultancy charges

Vehicle upkeep
Miscellaneous expenses

31

Total

Break+lp of mIscellaneous expenses
Guest house maIntenance

MembershIp and subscrIptions
General expenses

Covid related expenses

2022.23

45.88

1.20
2.60

49.68

2022.23
3.01

23.30

0.00
0.00
0.06
2.12

28.49

2022.23
21.05

0.02
1 75

22.82

2022.23
19.79

44.77
114.42

2.66
1.80

10.13

0.23

o.03
0.02
2.11

0.04
0.06
0.05

15.16

7.39
1.09
1.72
0.05
0.33
0.01

0.34
0.95
0.19
0.46
0.23

1.41
0.68
0.23

226.35

0.10

0.09
0.04

0.23

2021.22
32.86

1.07

2.08
36601

!

i

I

2021-22

2.10
9.07
0.08

0.01
1.13

12.39

2021-22

10.69

0.00
a 92

11.61

2021.22

12.96

27.41

65.44

2.52
1.72
6.89 I

!

i
i
I
!

t
I

0.18
C).03

0.01
0.85

0.09

0.16

11.60

2.85
0.24

0.90
0.12
0.23
0.01
0.34
0.51

0.21
0.33
0.15

0.63
0.64
0.32

137.34

0.16
0.01

0.04
0.11

0.32

!j

i
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32 Disclosure on CSR ActIvIty
The company is covered under section 135 of the companIes act, the following disclosure is made with regard to CSR activities:-

Particulars

1 Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year.
2 Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

' Ongoing

. Other than ongoing
2 Amount spent durIng the year on

(a) Construction/acquisItion of any asset
(b) On purposes other than (a) above

Total

3 Shortfall /(Excess) at the end of the year,

4 Total of previous years shortfall,
5 Reason for shortfall.

2022.23

0.34
0.34

2021-22

0.33
0.33

0.34

0.15
0.19

0.34

0.33

0.22
0.12

0.34

NA NA

6

(a)

(b)

(C)

(d)

(e)

(f)
(8)

(h)

Nature of CSR activities-

Particulars

Providing safe drinking water

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition

Promoting healthcare including sanitation

Construction of school

Skill training

Promoting Education
Construction of toilets at school

Setting up homes & hostels for wnmpn & orphans

2022.23
0.10

2021.22
0.00

0.03

0.01

0.13

0.080.17

0.04
0.03

0409

7 There are no transactIons with related parties for CSR expenditure

8 Since there is no unspent amount towards CSR obIIgation for the year, no provision is created

9 Dibtlubul eb under seuUun 135(5) ond 135(6)

A in case of S. 135(S) Unspent amount
Company has spent total amount requIred to be spent as per section 135 of Companies Act, hence disclosure u/s 135(5) of companIes act is not requIred, !

B in case of S. 135{6) (OngoingProJect)
Company does not have any ongoing proJects, hence dIsclosure u/s 135(6) of companIes act is not required

33 Relationship wIth Struck off CompanIes

The information about transaction wIth struck off Companies (defined under section 248 of the CompanIes Act, 2013 or section 560 of CompanIes Act, 1956) has been
determined to the extent such partIes have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company and the same is relied upon by the auditors,

During the previous year , the company had entered Into transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section S60 of

Companies Act, 1956, the details of which is given hereunder:.

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions with

struckoff Company

Amount as on March Amount as on March RelatIonshIp wIth the

31, 2023 31, 2022 Struck off company, if
any, to be dIsclosed

;i
:B )i

Maxin Hydro DynamIc India PrIvate LimIted

Kaspar EnergIes Private Ltd '
Gineex Alloy Private Limited +

Outstanding balance

Outstanding balance
OutstandIng balance

Trade Payable
Trade receIvable

Trade receivable

' The receivable from struck off CompanIes were fully provided as at March 31, 2021 and written off as at March 31, 2022

34 AnaIYtIcal Rat}os as per requIrements of Schedule III are given in Statement 2

bai +(

4GIg



35 Tax expenses

Reconciliation of statutory rate of tax and effective rate of tax 2022.23

(Rs. In Crores)

2021.22

(Rs. In Crores)
0.90Current taxes

Short/ {excess) provision of income tax
Deferred tax (1.32)

W
Current taxes

Accounting profit / (loss) before Income tax

At IndIa's statutory Income tax rate
Tax on long term capital gain

Tax on profIt / (loss)
Effect of non deductible expense

Effect of deductIble expenses and set off of losses

Effect of carry forward losses
Others

(5.58)
25.17%

23.30%

( 1.40)

6.54
(7.56)

2.42

Short / excess provision of earlier years

Deferred tax assets/{IIabIIIties) in relatIon to:-

Recognized in
Other

ComprehensIve
Income

RecognIzed in
profit and loss

PartIculars OpenIng

Property, Plant and Equipment
Employee benefIts
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Expected credit loss

Unabsorbed losses
Lease rent
As at March 31, 2022

Property, Plant and EquIpment
Employee benefits

Remeasurement gaIn/(loss) on defined benefit plans
Expected credIt Ioss
Unabsorbed losses

Lease rent

As at March 31, 2023

(4.72)
0.46

0.10
0.16

(3.60)
0.07

0.02

(0.16)

0.23

{3.45)
(1.37)
0.08

0.03

(3.97)

(8.32)
0.53

0.12

0.02

(0.01 )
to.01)
2.43
0.19
1831

0.26

(7.39) (0.01)

36 EarnIngs per share

The Company has not issued any potential diluted equity shares and therefore the basic and diluted earnings per share will be the same. The earnIngs wr share is

calculated by dIviding the profit after tax by weighted average no. of shares outstandIng.

ProfIt / (Lass) after tax (RS. in

OBI number of equIty shares outstanding (Nos.)

average no. of shares outstanding (Nos.)

Nominal value of equity share (Rs.)

Basicand DIluted Earnings per share (Rs.)

NomInal value of equIty share (Rs.)

For BasIc & DIluted EPS

otal number of equIty shares outstandIng at the begInning of the year
Issue of shares

Weighted average number of equitY shares Issued

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of year
number of shares at the end of theted

3.45

U
19.12

25.17%

23.30%

4.81

3.57
(7.60)

0.12
0.90

ClosIng

(8.32)
0.53
0.12

E
!

0.26
(7.40)
(9.69)
0.61
0.12
0.01

2.44
0.45

(6.07)

i

2021.22
14.77

S,25.05,952

5.19.40,541

2.84

5.08.80,952
16,25.000
10,59,589

5,25,05,952

}

E
i
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37 DIscIosure in accordance with Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits”, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Company has carried out the actuarial valuation of Gratultv and L£ave Enca5hment IIabIIIty under actuarIal prInciple, in accordance with Ind AS 19 . Ernployee

Benefits. The total amount of gratulty determined on actuarial method is Rb 2.12 Crores (P.Y. Rs. 1.90 Crores),

The following table summarIzes the components of net benefit expense recognIzed
recognized in the balance sheet.
PartIculars

In the statement of profit and loss and the unfunded status and amounts

Expense recognIzed in State;
Current servIce cost

Past servIce cost

ServIce cost

Net interest on net defined benefit liabilitY / asset

Less : Gratutty expenses capItaIIzed durIng the year
Total

Expense recognIzed in Other ComprehensIve Income

Actuarial gains / (losses)

Net asset / IIabIIItY recognIzed in Balance Sheet

Present value of defined benefit obIIgation

Fail vdlue uf plan assets

Change in obIIgatIon durIng the year

Present value of defined benefit obIIgation at the beginning of the year
Current servIce cost
Interest cost

BenefIts paId

Actuarial (BaIns) / losses
Present value of defined benefit obIIgation at the end of the year

The prIncIpal assumptions used in determIning the gratuity obIIgations are as follows :
FInancIal auurnptlons
Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

DemographIc assumptions
Withdrawal rate 2% 2%

Ind Assured Lives Ind Assured Lives

MortaIIty (2(X)&D8) MwtalttV (2006.08)

(modIfied) Uk (modified) Uh

Mortality rate

SensitIvIty analysIs

DIscount rate
1% Increase in dIscount rate

1% decrease in discount rate

2022.23

(0.18)
0.21

2021.22

(0.17)
0.20

2020.21

(0.14)
0.16

Salary escalatIon
1% Increase in discount rate

1% decrease in dIscount rate

2022'23
0.21

(0.18)

2021-22
0.20
(0.17)

2020'21
0.16

(0.14)

Risk Factors / Assumptions

Interest rIsk : The defined benefit obIIgation calculated uses a dIscount rate based on government bonds. If bonds yIelds fall, the defIned benefit obligation will
tend to increase,

Salary InflatIon rIsk : Higher then expected Increases in salary will Increase the defined benefit obIIgation

DemographIc rIsk : This is the rIsk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that Include mortality withdrawat , disability of retirement. TIle

effect of theses decrements on the defined benefit obIIgatIon is not straight forward and depends upon the combinatIon of salary increase, dIscount rate and

vestIng criteria. it is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typIcally costs less

per year as compared to a long service employee,

DIsclosure in accordance wIth in AS - 108 -OperatIng Segments", of the CompanIes (IndIan AccountIng Standards) Rubs, 2015.

a) Almost the entIre sales and Job work operatIons of the Company relate to only one segment vIz Lead Smelters and Renners. As such, there is no separate reportable

segment under Ind AS ' 108 on Operating Segments.

b) Almost the entire sales and job work are to the parent company whIch is the sIngle largest customer of the Company. Revenue contributed by single customer is Rs.

3,800.11 Crores (P.Y. Rs. 2,822.48 Crores) whIch is approximately 96.97 % (P.Y. 97,46%) of total revenue of the Company,

38

2022.23

(Rs. In Crores)

0.23

0823

0.13
4.02
0.34

0.03

2.12

2.12

1.90
0.23

0.13
(0.11)
(0.03)

2.12

7.30%

5.00%

2019-20

(0.09)
0.11

201b20
0.11

(0.09)

2021-22

(Rs. In Crores)

0.19

0.19
0.11
4.00
0l30

4.09

1.90

1.90
i

;

}

1.60
0.19
r).11

(0.09)

0.09
1.90

7.(X)%

5.00% ii
i
i

2018.19

(0.10)
0.11

2018.19
0.12

(0.10)

i

ii

at
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2022.23 2021.22
in Crin Crores

of expenses
Exlde IndustrIes Limited

Balances as on March 31
Not Recotvable

Associated Battery Manufacturers (Ceylon) Llmlted

Net Payable
Exlde Industries Limited

The Company’s related party transactions durIng the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and outstanding balances as at March 311 2023 and March
31, 2022 are with its Holding Company and fellow subsidiaries with whom the Company generally enters Into transactions at arms length and in the ordInarY course

of business.

All the balances of related partIes are unsecured

40 Contingent llabllktesand commItments
PartIculars

2022As at March 31, 2023 1 As at h
Rs. in CroresRs. in Crores

iMnt liabiIItIes

{a) Bank guarantees gIven on behalf of Company

(b) DIsputed tax dues for which the company is contingentty liable

DIrect Taves

IndIrect taxes

!

ts
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to hp Pxeruted nn rapital account and not provIded for
(b) Purchase orders backed by LC opened by bankers.

27.08

59.6865.70

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC) by their order dated February 28, 2019 has held that provident fund contributions are payable on basic wage, dearness

allowances and all other monthly allowances, which are universally, necessarily and ordInarily paid to all the employees in the estabIIshment across the board.
Tbere are numerous interpretative issues relatIng to the Judgement. As such, the Company has, based on legal advice and as a matter of cautionf created and

discharged IIabIIIty on a prospectIve basis without consIdering any probable obligations for past periods. The Company will continue to monitor and evaluate its

position and act, as clarity emerges.

!

41 FInancIal Instruments

1) The carryIng value and faIr value of financIal Instrurnents by categorIes as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Cbnylng Value hh Value
Mantt 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

s. in Crores) IRs. in Crores) (Rs. In Crores)
a) FInancIal assets

At Amortized Cost

Trade recetvables

Others

Cash and cash equivalent!
Total Fln8ncl81 Assets

FInancIal IIabIIItIes

At Annrtlzed Cost

BorrowIngs
Trade payables

Lease liability
Others
ToTtHa Finaffcial LiabiIItIes

67.56

9.73

6.09
83.38

74.97

9.32

Ms

67.56

9.73

a3

74.97
9.32

#5
b)

i
i

i
I
t.

ii

i

!!

111.95

41S.31

32.10

22.21

581.57

113.58

367.05

31.15

13.04

524.82

111.95
415.31

32.10
22.21

581.57

113.58
367.05
31.15
13.04

524.82

Since there are no fInancIal Instruments and assets and IIabilities carried at fair value in the fInancIal statements, the dIsclosure of faIr value and the faIr value hIerarchy

as per Ind AS 107 are not given. Further the management estImates that the carrying value of assets and liabIIItIes carrIed at amorUzed costs approxImates their fair
value

42 Financial risk management obJectIves and poIIcies

The Company’s financIal liabIIItIes comprIse short.term borrowings, capital aeditors and trade and other payables.
The maIn purpose of these financial liabIlities is to finance the Company’s operatIons. The Company’s fInancIal assets include trade and other receIvable$ cash and cash

equivalents and Investment.
The market rIsks and credIt rIsks are further explaIned below'



i)

Financial rIsk factors

Market rIsk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument wIll fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two

tYpes of rIsk: currencY risk and commodity prIce risk

The CompanY's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance,

a) Exchange risk

Foreign currency rIsk is the rIsk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreIgn exchange rates. However the
CompanY operates onIY in the domestic market catering mainly to its holding company's lead alloy requirements for theIr storage battery manutacture. The Company's
risk exposure to foreign exchange is limited to its sourcing the Raw MaterIal InternatIonally and selling the lead alloys to its fellow subsIdIary. Such foreign currency

exposures are not hedged by the Company.

Foreign currency sensItIvIty
The followIng table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's
profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and IIabilities,

Effect on Profit /
(Loss) before taB

mm:@
2022 !

!

I

i
i

ForeIgn exchange transactIons

As at
m2 yE

b) CommodIty PrIce Risk

The prImary market rIsk to the Company is commodity prIce rIsk. However the Cornpany primarily supplies to the holding company and Its prIcIng mechanIsm for Its
products are IInked to the UUE prices of Lead that is the main raw m8terl81 for the Comp8ny. The Company has not had 8ny significant losses on 8ccount of prIce change

risks arIsIng out of changes in the prIce of Bad. Tbough the Company's maIn customer, whIch is Its HoldIng Company , is exposed to commodItY prIce change risk, the

Company's prIcIng arrangements with it does not affect the transfer price between the Company and its Holding Company. DetermIning the sensitivity to the
commodity price changes would not reflect the correct analysis as the Company is in a posItIon to translate most of the prIce changes in its selling price determinatIon
wIth the holdIng company. Hence the sensitIvIty to the commodIty prIce changes is not dIsclosed.

i
f

ii)

CredIt rIsk refers to the rIsk of default on its obligation by the counterpartv resulting in a financial loss. TIle maxImum exposure to the credIt risk at the reporting date is
prImarIly from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 46.88 Crores (PY Rs.63.84 Crores), which is majorly from the holding company. The aedit period agreed from the
holding company is 30 days and there have been no significant delays by the holdIng company in honorIng the contractual terms.

SInce the prImary customer is the holdIng company the credit rIsk is remote. In the absence of any bad debts from the holding company in the past the expected credIt
loss is zero and the Company is making no provIsions on account any expected credit loss. All overdue customer balances are evaluated taking into account the age of
the dues, specific credIt cIrcumstances, the track record of the counterparty etc. Loss allowances and ImpaIrment is recognIzed, where consIdered approprIate by
responsIble management.

Credit rIsk

iii) liquIdIty risk

LIquidity rIsk is the rIsk that the Company wIll encounter difficulty in meetIng the obIIgatIons assocIated wIth its flnanclal IIabIIIties that are settled by deliverIng cash or
another financIal asset.

The Company’s approach to managing IIquIdity is to ensure as far as possible that it WII have sufficient liquidity to meet its IIabIIIties when they are due, under both
normal and stressed condition, without incurring unacceptable losses or rIsking damage to the Company’s reputation,

Cash flow from operatIng activities provides the funds to service the financial liabilities and investing activities for plant set up. DIe Company's objective is to rnalntaln a
balance between contInuIty of fundIng and flexIbIlity through the use of surplus funds, bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures and inter-corporate loans.
The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has accas to a suffident variety of

sources of funding.
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The workIng capItal positIon of the company is gIven below:
PartIculars

Cash and ca6h equivalent
Bank balance

Current financial assets

Inventory
Trade recelvabtes
Other Current assets

Total

As at
March 31. 2023

1618M

6.07

6.55

248.61

67.56

51.28

380.09

Less

Short term borrowIngs
Current financial IIabiIIties

Lease liabiIIty
ProvIsIons

Other current IIabIIIties

Trade payables
Total

Tom W.95) (59.51)

The tabk below provIdes detaIls regardIng the cantndual matudtles ofslmtflnnt fInancIal IIabIIItIes :
Partlcutan bss than 1 year 1'5 years
As at March 31, 2023
BortowirW U68
Other fInancIal IIabIIItIes U.80

lease liabitlV 286
LIabIIIty for leasehold land O.32
Trade payables 415.31
Total m.97

AS at March 31, 2022

But I uwlll B',
Other financial liabIlities

Lease IIabIIItY

Liability for leasehold land
Trade payables

Total

62.96

13.OS

2.8/
0.18

367.05

446.11

AS at

March 31, 2022
mo

1.53

6.56
266.16

74.97

44.52

393.75

62.96

13.04

1.40
0.64
8.17

367.05

453.26

27.68

15.80

1.50

0.76
3.99

415.31

465.04

Totalo u
111.94
22.21
42.46

367.98

415.31

959.90

84.26

6.41

12.52

1.76

27.08

365.90

392.98

i
i
i
i

104.95

3.40

31.84
363.17

398841

113.58
13.18

45.34

364.15

367.05

903830

47.22

0.13

IO.bJ
0.80

58.78

i
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iv} Interest rate risk

IDtCreSt late list\ is tlt€ risk tIIat filit value or fu lure cash flows of a findllci31 lnstl uIIrellt y;jjI fluctuate because of cttanBes Irl malket lntelest ! dIes

IIte col’rpdn b' IS e.'I)o:cd to interest rate rISk because it baI roy/s fund', prIma iI:y at fl!}ntilrG tIlt Ole st rat,.i. IntQre', I : at ? is tQ be reset at 3-12 molttlts interval

1)tIring the pITs’iau.s Year. COm;]ally Itas entered into factortIn 3rr3neernt'nt on t13dt' receivables Ihc Company haq paid Interest on factoring of trade rocelv3ble

antountinB to Iis. 23. JO Cr {PY Rs. g.Q:/ Cr). Any cllirni,c in intel tbl rate) \viII h,Ive do In\pdct on intel cst on factol ing of trade iecuivable

PartIculars

Secured loans

As dt

March 31, 2023

IU gS

As at

March 31, 2022

.113.58

Sen$itlyitY Bnalvsis bas fd aUglUqB&outstaIHlnR secvred loIns &, Factoring of trade recelvablqs

PartIculars
Impact on Profit I (Loss) after tax

2022.23 2021.22

J.3S J .alflcteasc OI d&lease in intel est late by K>3 basis point;

43 The balance sheet, slaten\ent of profIt and loss, cash flu// stdternent, staterncnt of chartRes in equity, statauent of SignifICant accctlrtHnR policies and the otlter

orplaniIlay notes fa nls an inteeral part of the liIIan(ial }tatelnents of tIle CQllrp,IIly for the year aIde,J MardI 31. 2023

The accompanying notes form an inteRral part of the standalone ind AS financial statements

AS per our report of even date
For Natvadal Vepari and fa
ICAI Fhrn Re8istralion No. ; 106971\\I
Cltartered Accountants

of the Board of Directors

\\?
Q
./

mB
Mumbai

K Anlruddh8
DiN CD(19659035

Mol\n81ll8 Dil trIal F

}

i
I
t

i

i
J

b//
A. K, Choudhury
ChIef Financial OffIcer Cornpany Secretary

N\rio L379vI’:ace

Date
Place

Dale



Chloride Metals LImited

Statement 1. Returns/statements submitted to the Bank and Financials InstitutIon

3143.2023 ( Amount in

Amount as per baoksl Amount as reported in the
of account quarterly return/

Ql HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

DFC Bank & Axis Bank

1 3 l01 [DFC Bank & Axis

HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

HDFC Bank & Axis BankQ2

Q2 HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

Q3 HDFC Bank & Ax=
HDFC Bank & Axis BankI ; Ii; Km

224.07

164.97

474.89
lgB=© IIgI

180.02

.4

164.97

B=7Zaglg

a2 =© lg

IFgBlbIg

484.39

105.14

Stock

Books Debts
Trade

Stock

Books Debts
-rade

The Company has not yet submitted Q4 Returns / statements with the bank for the financial year 2022-23

Sr No 1 Quarter Name of bank

3143-2022 ( Amount in Crores

I Amount as per booksl Amount as reported in the
of account quarterly return/ statement

Amount of
difference

Reason for
materIal

dlscre

3

5
6

8

10
11

12

Q1

Q1
al
Q2

Q2

M2

M
Q3

M
rai

HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

a

MC Bank & Axis Bank
HDFC Bank & Axis Bank

aMmxTm
a m
a

a THE

Stock

Books Debts

yable
:ock

Books Debts

Trade
ltock

Books Debts

,able
Stock

Books Debts

Trade

221.23
37.58

277.20

298.19
110.27

458.97

333.67

103.58
483.31

266.17

74.97
367.05

221.23

37.58

277.20
298.19

110.27

458.97

483.31
266.17

74.97

367.05



Numerator/
DenomInator
Current Asset

Current LIabIlitIes

Sr. RatIo

No.

1 Current ratio

Total Debts

Shareholders Equity

2 Debt-Equity ratio

Earnings available for debt

service
Debt Service

3 Debt Service Coverage
ratio

4 Return on Equity ratio ( Net Profits after taxes -

ROE) Preference DIvIdend

Average Shareholder’s Equity

Cost of goods sold OR salesS Inventory Turnover
Ratio

Average Inventory

Trade Recelvables

turnover ratIo
6

Revenue

Average Accounts Receivable

Trade payables Net Credit Purchases
turnover ratio

Average Trade Payables '

' Average trade payables only relates to trade payable for goods

Net capital turnover Revenue
ratio

Average working capital

7

8

9 Net profit ratio Net Profit after Tax

Net Sales

Return on Capital

employed (ROCE)

Earning before Interest and
taxes

Capital Employed

10

11 Return on Investment

(ROI) {MV(Tl) - MV{TD) - Sum [C(t)1}

{MV(TD) + Sum [W(t) • Cd)]}

•+ As there are no investments, this ratio is not applicable

ChlorIde Metals LImIted

Statement 2. AnatytJcal RatIos

2022.23

Ratio

(2022'231
0.82

0.45

0.48

-1.91%

13.98

54.99

9.99

(59.40)

4.11%

5.73% 9.03%

C@ glr= MIIt

G#

% of Reason for varIance

VariatIon

4.51%

RatIo

(2021-22)
0.89

0.58 -22.29%

-76.42% Reduction in earnings, due to increase in

material cost and other operating cost

(increase in rates for furnace oil and

chemicals) and Increase in fInance cost due

to factoring of trade receivables

2.03

-124.32% Reduction in net profit due to increase in
fInance cost, deprecIatIon and other
operating cost (increase in rates for
furnace oil and chemicals

13.93%

7.85%

12.27

6S.6WX Less utilization of factoring facIlity as at the

end of the year

33.19

12.42%8.89

(64.11) .7.35%

.121.39% Reduction in net profit due to increase in
finance cost, depreciation and other
operating cost (increase in rates for
furnace oII and chemIcals)

.36.53% Increase in operatIonal expenses (increase

In rates for furnace oil and chemicals) and

increase in deprecIation at Haldia

0.51%

NA++


